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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Hindustan Waste Treatment Private Limited

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hindustan Waste Treatment Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprse the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Cash Flows and statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (‘Act)) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2023, its profit and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described n the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
tor our opinion. '

Key audit matters

Key audit. matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the
Company as it 1s an unlisted company.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures
to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not mnclude the Financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be matenally misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and the Cash Flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The board of directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 1s not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arse from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an Audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:-

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The sk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from etror,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the approprateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the Going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
Going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our Auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence cbtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial statemerits represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare citcumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements:-

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our optnion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

() The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and lLoss, the Cash Flow statement and the
statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors s disqualified as on March 31,
2023 trom being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(fy With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us;

. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ti. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iit. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31™ March, 2023.

tv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entities (“intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entity
identified in any manner whatsoever by or behalf of the company (“ultimate beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the company from any person or entity including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other person or entity identified in any manner
whatsoever by or behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that representations
under sub clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

(h). The Board of Directors of the Company have not proposed dividend for the year ended 31
March 2023.

() With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the act, as amended, we report that Section 197 is not applicable
to the private Company. Hence reporting as per section 197(16) 1s not required




KAVATHEKAR & CO

104, Shree Ganesh, 1st Floor,

32F, Bhavani Shankar Road, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Kabutar Khana, Dadar (West), Partners:
Mumbaj - 400 028. S. K. KAVATHEKAR

Telefax: (O): 2432 7252 B.Com. (Hons.), F. C. A.

Rahul S. KAVATHEKAR
B.Com. F.C. A, B. G. L.

j)- As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable

Kavathekar & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 118437W

CA
Partner

Membership No. 102737

Place: Mumbai

Dated: 5.9.2023

UDIN : 23102737BGXCNPG6465
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’
of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,
2023:

1) (@ The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets; '

(b) 'The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased
manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its
business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed asset has been physically
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies between the
books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.

(© According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us
and the company does not hold any asset in form of Land or Building so issue of
whether conveyance deeds & title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of
land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the
balance sheet date does not arise.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property during the current period .

(¢) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
Benami Property under the Benami Transactions { Prohibition) Act,1988 (45 of 1988)
and Rules made thereunder ; '

2) (@) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory and Work in
Process at reasonable intervals. The discrepancies noticed on physical verfication of the
inventory as compared to books records which has been properly dealt with in the books of
account were not material. -

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits of Five Crore rupees, from banks on the basis of security of Fixed deposit .
The Company is not required to file quarterly returns or statements with bank in this
regards. ¥ -

3) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination
of books and records by us,
(a) The Company has not granted any loans or provided advances in the nature of
loans or stood guarantee or provided security to its subsidiaries and associates during the
year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (iii) (@) (A) of the Order is not applicable.

7
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) The Company has granted unsecured loans or advances in the nature of loans as
specified below :

{Amount in Lacs)

Loan given ; , ~ {Advances in nature of loans
Aggregate amount granted during the year U

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of the |300.00

above case

* The terms and conditions of the grant of loans or advances in the nature of loans, as
referred to above, are not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

* In respect of the loans/advances in nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated, and the parties are repaying the principal
amounts, as stipulated. Interest receivable for the year has been accrued at the year end and
the same stands receivable as at the balance sheet date,

* In respect of the loans/advances in nature of loans, there is no amount which is overdue for
more than ninety days.

*There were no loans /advances in nature of loans which fell due during the year and were
renewed/extended. Fusther, no fresh loans were granted to the same parties to settle the

existing overdue loans/advances in nature of loan.

* The Company has not ted any loans or advances in the nature of loans that are either
pany gran ¥ :

repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

4) According to the information and explinations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee
or security as specified under Section 185 of the Compantes Act, 2013 and the Company has .
not provided any security as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Further, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in relation to loans and guarantee given and investments made.

5) In our opinion and :i(:cording to the information and explanations given to us, The
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by

8
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the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard
to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

6) As per information and explanations given by the management the requirement of
maintenance of the cost records is not applicable to the company.

7) (@) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and any other statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax,
duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2023
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable except for
Provident Fund dues of Rs. 0.04 Lac & ESIC dues of Rs. 0.05 Lac

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there has been no dues have
been disputed by the company as on 31" March, 2023.

8) There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account and which have
been surrendered or disclosed as income.

9) (@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has not taken
any loan from the government and has not issued any debentures. It is regular in repayment
of Loan taken from financial institutions. :

(b) According to the information and explanation given the company has not been
declared as defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government
authority or other lender.

(C) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, there
are no term loans loan borrower, so issue of it been applied for the purpose for which
loans were obtained does not arise; '
(D) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company;

{e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not taken any funds from
any entity or persons on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates
or joint ventures.
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(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, during the year the company has not raised
-any loans on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associated
companies.

10)  (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of mnitial public offer (IPO)
or further public offer including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

(B) During the year the company has not made any preferential allotment.

11)  (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given

by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
(12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

12)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
.examination of the records of the Company, the Company 1s not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(x1) of the Order 1s not applicable.

13) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14) (a)In our opmon and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business. ‘

b) The reports of the Internal Audit or for the period under audit have been considered by
us.

15) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, during the year the company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with any director or persons connected with him. Hence,
provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

10
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16)  (a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 {xvi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.
b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not conducted any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order
is not applicable. ‘
(©) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basts of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC). Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

17) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not incurred cash losses
during the year under report or immediately preceding financial year

18) There were no resignations of statutory auditors of the company during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

19) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
staternents, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on
_our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that company is incapable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due.

20) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us with respect
to obligations under Corporate Social Responsibility, there is no need for company to
transfer the unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act
within a period of 6 months from the expiry of the financial year, as there is not unspent
amount in accordance with provisions of section 135[5] of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, clauses xx (2) and xx (b) of the Order are not applicable. ‘
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21)  The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said

clause under this report.

Kavathekar & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 118437W

i
CA:
Partner
Membership No. 102737

Place: Mumbai  Dated: 5.9.2023 UDIN : 23102737BGXCNP6465
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the s PRl e BaC b
Statements of Hindustan Waste Treatment Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. Hindustan Waste
Treatment Private Limited, (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
effictent conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Compantes Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our Audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,
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KAVATHEKAR & CO

104, Shree Ganesh, 1st Floor,

32F, Bhavani Shankar Road, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Kabutar Khana, Dadar (West), Partners:
Mumbaj - 400 028. S. K. KAVATHEKAR

Telefax: (O): 2432 7252 B.Com. (Hons.), F-C. A.

Rahul S. KAVATHEKAR

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting B.Lom, F.C.A,B.Q.L.

A Company's internal Financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company:

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Kavathekar & Co
Chartered Accountants
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Hindustan Waste Treatment Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

CIN : U90002MH2014PTC255728

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars

ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Other intangible assets
{c) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Loans
(d) Income tax assets (Net)
(e) Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

2 Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Other bank balances
(v) Other financial assets
(c) Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

(a) Equity share capital

(b) Other equity
Total equity

Liabilities
1 Non-current liabilities
(a) Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

2 Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables

—

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises

and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities
(c) Other current liabilities
(d) Current tax liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

As at As at
Notes
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
5 384.97 61.58
6 1,809.48 2,366.24
7 260.31 462.24
8 800.00 800.00
9 158.43 114.06
10 1,004.09 704.63
4,417.28 4,508.75
11 971.84 639.19
12 1,370.95 4,894.10
13 28.31 79.79
14 654.58 130.88
15 73.67 12.43
16 533.19 411.66
3,632.54 6,168.05
8,049.82 10,676.81
17 3,904.00 3,904.00
18 2,172.52 1,834.29
6,076.52 5,738.29
19 4.51 4.60
4.51 4.60
20 189.43 800.00
21
21 1,556.98 1,795.36
22 - 2,242.50
23 222.38 96.05
24 - -
1,968.7% 4,933.91
1,973.30 4,938.51
8,049.82 10,676.81

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For Kavthekar & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 118437w
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Hindustan Waste Treatment Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
CIN : U90002MH2014PTC255728

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

S St Year ended Year ended
SRS SeEs March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income
| Revenue from operations 25 4,716.77 10,537.32
Il Other income 26 104.25 35.55
Il Total income (I+Il) 4,821.02 10,572.86
IV Expenses
Project Cost 27 2,372.52 7,587.81
Changes In Inventories of Work in Progress 28 (332.65) 302.67
Employee benefits expense 29 493.91 487.35
Finance costs 30 11.90 53.63
Depreciation and amortization expense 31 570.59 568.63
Other expenses 32 1,287.46 900.82
IV Total expenses 4,403.73 9,900.92
V  Profit before tax (lll-1V) 417.29 671.95
VI Tax expense
irrent  Current tax 33 80.97 112.80
Deferred tax 33 - -
Total tax expense 80.97 112.80
y|I Profit for the year (V-VI) 336.32 559.15
Vill Other comprehensive income (OCl)
a) [tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
i) Re-measurement loss on defined benefit liabilities 1.91 3.83
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
1.9 3.83
VIIl Other comprehensive losses for the year, net of tax 1.91 3.83
IX Total comprehensive income for the year 338.23 562.98
Earnings per share face value of ¥10 each fully paid up
Basic earnings per share (%) 34 0.86 1.43
Diluted earnings per share (%) 34 0.86 1.43
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached —
For Kavthekar & Co For and fe h%fftéfﬁe of Directors
Chartered Accountants i ] .= ?’@Treaﬂfe\%{; Private Limited
Firm's Registration No: 118437W 5 ‘
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A Rahul Kavthekar Saket Dhando Shivaji Dekai Bhavika Shah

Director
DIN: 07299001

Director
Membership No: 102737 DIN: 06873114

Place: Mumbai
Date: 05-09-9022
UDIN - 23102737BGXCNP6465

Place: Mumbai
Date: 05 . 09. 2023

Place: Mumbai
Date: n5.09- 2023

Company Secretary
Membership No: A58556
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Hindustan Waste Treatment Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
CIN : U90002MH2014PTC255728

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

(A) Equity share capital

No. of shares Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2021 3,90,40,000 3,904.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 3,90,40,000 3,904.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3,90,40,000 3,904.00
(B) Other equity
Reserve and surplus
Particulars : : Ohlrer ; Total
Retained earnings Comprehensive
Income
Balance as at April 01, 2021 1,271.31 1,271.31
Profit for the year 559.15 559.15
Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans (net of tax) - 3.83 3.83
Total comprehensive income for the year 559.15 3.83 562.98
Add/(Less) : Transfer from / (to) Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,830.46 3.83 1,834.29
Reserve and surplus
Particulars . ) Othar . Total
Retained earnings Comprehensive
Income

Balance as at April 01, 2022 1,830.46 3.83 1,834.29
Profit for the year 336.32 - 336.32
Re-measurement gain/ (loss) of defined benefit plans (net of tax) s 1.91 1.91
Total comprehensive income for the year 336.32 5.75 338.23
Add/(Less) : Transfer from / (to) Statement of Profit & Loss - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 2,166.78 5.75 2,172.53

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

The description of nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:

Retained earnings:
Retained earnings are the profit that the company has earned till date.

As per our report of even date attached
For Kavthekar & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 118437W
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Hindustan Waste Treatment Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
CIN : U90002MH2014PTC255728

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended

March 31, 2023

Far the year ended

March 31, 2022

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year before tax 417.29 671.95
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortization expenses 570.59 568.63
Finance costs 11.90 53.63
Loss on sale of Property,plant & equipment 0.34
Interest income (34.58) (16.55)
Operating profit before working capital changes 965.54 1,277.67
Working capital adjustments :
Increase in trade payables (238.38) 1,273.80
(Decrease)/Increase in other current liabilities 126.33 (738.86)
(Decrease)/ increase in other financial liabilities (2,242.50) -
(Decrease)/ increase in long term provisions 1.82 (8.35)
Increase in inventories (332.65) 302.67
Decrease/ (increase) in trade receivables 3,725.08 (4,097.57)
Decrease/ (increase) in other financial assets (61.24) 1.46
Decrease/ (increase) in other current assets (121.53) 498.20
Decrease/ (increase) in non-current assets (299.46) (385.94)
Cash generated from operations 1,523.01 (1,076.93)
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (125.34) (232.74)
Net cash from operating activities (A) 1,397.66 (1,309.67)
Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment (348.06) (36.84)
Loans Given - (800.00)
Proceeds from Sale of property, plant and equipment 10.51 .
Bank deposits placed (net) (523.70) 48.45
Interest received 34.58 16.55
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities (B) (826.67) (771.84)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from short term borrowings (610.57)
Interest paid on loans & duties & taxes (11.90) (53.63)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) (622.47) (53.63)
Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C) (51.47) (2,135.14)
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 79.79 2,214.94
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 13) 28.32 79.80
Components of Cash and cash equivalents -
Cash in hand - 0.32
Balances with bank 13.06 11.59
Deposit with original maturity of less than three months 15.25 67.89
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 13) 28.31 79.80

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Kavthekar & Co For and on
Chartered Accountants Hindustan
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Hindustan Waste Treatment Private Limited

Notes to Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
CIN : US0002MH2014PTC255728

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

1

2.1

2.2

2.3

Company Overview

Hindustan Waste Treatment Private Limited (HWTPL) is a SPV company established on 27th June 2014 having its registered office
situated at Thane. HWTPL is a SPV company formed specifically to undertake the Project of Municipal Solid Waste (MSW)
Processing Facility of 250 Tons/day on Design, Build, Finance, Operate, Transfer (DBPOT) basis at Calangute in North Goa
District, Goa on behalf of the Department of Science, Technology & Environment. The scope of work includes Construction &
Commissioning of waste treatment plat along with O&M for 10 years.

The MSW Plant was inaugurated on 30th May, 2016 and has started its commercial operations from 21 August 2016 after
successful trial runs carried out as per concession agreement. This is the only 100% MSW 2016 Compliant operating plant in India,
and is a role model plant adopted under Swatch Bharat Mission.

Basis for Preparation

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule IlI
to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The statement of cash flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements
of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of

Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule Il to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial
statements.

Statement of Compliance

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 issued by Ministry
of Corporate Affairs in respect of Section 133 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
relevant amendment rules issued thereafter. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) are also applied except if compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different
treatment. These financials statements have been approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 06" September,
2023.

Basis of accounting and preparation and presentation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which are
measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date:

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)

ii) Employee’s Defined Benefit Plan as per actuarial valuation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree
to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to
measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant
to the entire measurement.

»
Functional & Presentation Currency




2.4

The financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the functional currency of the Company and the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. All values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs (INR 00,000),
unless otherwise indicated.

Use of estimates and Judgements
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires
the management of the Company to make estimates assumptions and judgments that affect the reported balances of assets and
liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and
expense for the periods presented.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates considering different assumptions and conditions. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Impact on account of revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. The following are the critical estimates,
assumptions and judgements that the management have made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and
that have a significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

(a) Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of
periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value
at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company’s assets are determined by the Management at the time the
asset is acquired and reviewed periodically.

(b) Employee benefits:

Employee benefit obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, employee
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

(c) Provision for income tax and deferred tax assets

The Company uses estimates and judgements based on the relevant rulings in the areas of revenue, costs, allowances and
disallowances which is exercised while determining the provision for income tax. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses
can be utilised. Accordingly, the Company exercises its judgement to reassess the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the
end of each reporting period.

(d) Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligations. These provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. The Company uses significant judgements to disclose contingent liabilities.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are neither recognised
nor disclosed in the financial statements.

(e) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of

judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as market risk, liquidity risk
and credit risk.

(f) Allowance for credit losses on receivables
The Company determines the allowance for credit losses based on historical loss experience adjusted to reflect current and
estimated future economic conditions. The Company considered current and anticipated future economic conditions relating to
industries the Company deals with and the countries where it operates.

-




2.5

3.1

3.2

(2) Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an
individual asset. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre- tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risk
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share price for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current
The Operating Cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisitions of the assets for processing and their realisation in cash
& cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current and non current
classification of assets and liabilities.
For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current if:

(i) It is expected to be realized, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or

(i) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

(ifi) It is expected to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Similarly, a liability is classified as current if:

(i) It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or

(i1) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments at the option of the
counterparty does not affect this classification.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in the Financials Statements.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The revenue is mainly derived from fixed annuity due on a quarterly basis & operations & maintenance service charges due on a
monthly basis as per the terms mentioned in the Letter of Award and the Concession Agreement. The said revenue has been
commenced during the financial year under review. The Company is advised of being eligible for deduction u/s. 80 IA of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as the project is on Design, Build, Finance, Operate, Transfer (DBFOT) basis.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account outstanding and the applicable interest rate. The
project undertaken is on DBFOT basis, one of the variant of PPP model, whereas the said MSW plant will be constructed and
operated for 10 years. The plant is completed in May 2016 and has already started its operations. However, adhering to
concession agreement terms, the said infrastructure facility constructed under Service Concession Agreement and is recognized
as an Intangible Asset at actual project cost & shall be amortized based on straight line method over the period of 10 years i.e.
project duration during which annuity income shall be recognized.

Income from Power generation is recognised on the basis of electrical units generated and transferred to transmission company
and is recognised at prescribed rate as per agreement for sale of electricity by the company. Income from power generation is
grouped under 'other operating Revenue'.

The scrap sales arising directly due to operating activity is a part of revenue from operations.

Recognition of Dividend Income, Interest income or expense
Interest income or expense is recognized using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or




- the amortized cost of the financial liability

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when
the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortized cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-
impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized

cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross
basis.

Other income
Interest income from other financial assets is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the interest rate
applicable.

3.3 Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE)

PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its
intended use, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes professional fees related
to the acquisition of PPE and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company’s accounting
policy.

Expenditure incurred after the PPE have been put into use such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance cost are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in
which they were incurred.

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of PPE.

Capital work in Progress:

Expenditure during construction period (including financing cost related to borrowed funds for construction or acquisition of
qualifying PPE if any) is included under Capital Work-in-Progress, and the same is allocated to the respective PPE on the
completion of their construction. Advances given towards acquisition or construction of PPE outstanding at each reporting date
are disclosed as Capital Advances under “Other non-current Assets”

Depreciation:

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over its useful life and is provided using written down
value method, so as to write off the cost of the assets less their residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined by technical evaluation, over the useful
life so determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption
of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each
financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/residual value is accounted on prospective basis. In
respect of additions to /deletions from the PPE, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of
addition/deletion of the Assets.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of a Property, Plant and Equipment are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

The company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on the following assets:

Property, Plant & Equipment Management's estimate of Useful life as per schedule I
useful life

Plant and machinery used for civil construction 12 years 12 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years 10 years

Office equipment 5 years 5 years

Computers 3 years 3 years

Vehicles 8 years 8 years

3.4 Financial Instruments

i) Recognition and initial measurement~




3.5

Trade receivables are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially
measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:
- amortized cost

- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its business model for
managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period
following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOC| as described above are measured at FVTPL. This
includes all derivative financial assets (see Note 42). On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
Financial assets at amortized cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is

iii) Derecognition

a) Financial Assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when:
- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire; or
- it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which either:
« substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred; or

« the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

b) Financial Liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. The
Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are
substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid
(including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any
impairment. Impairment loss, if any, is provided to the extent, the carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated
future cash flows expected tg akise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal] at the end of its useful life.



3.6

3.7

3.10

Impairment loss 1s recognized 1n the statement of profit and loss or against revaluation surplus, where applicable. It at the
balance sheet date there is an indication that previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists the recoverable amount is
reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to maximum of depreciated historical cost.

i) Non-derivative financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of all financial
assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financial assets measured at fair valued through profit and loss (FVTPL). For
Trade Receivables the Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of
trade receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed. For other financial assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is
no significant increase in credit risk since its initial recognition. If there is significant increase in credit risk since its initial
recognition full lifetime ECL is used.

ii) Impairment of non-financial Asset

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than inventories, contract
assets and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of an individual asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal.

. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise work-in-progress are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories

comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value; cost is determined on First-In-First-Out basis. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that is
reasonably estimable, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that
arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise. When an
inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent asset are disclosed in the financial statements.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include provident fund and gratuity fund.
(i) Defined Contribution Plan:

The Company's contributions towards provident fund is defined contribution scheme. The Compay's contribution paid/payable
under the schemes is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis during the period in which the employee
renders the related service.

-



ii) Short-Term Employee Benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and short term compensated absences, etc. and the expected cost of ex-gratia, if any
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

iii) Defined benefit plan:

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme with Life Insurance Corporation of India is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net
obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and
the fair value of any plan assets is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation at each balance
sheet date by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving
rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the
present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans are based on the market yields on Government securities as at the
balance sheet date. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the net total of
any unrecognized actuarial losses and past service costs and the present value of any future refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the statement of other comprehensive income.

3.11 Taxation

The tax expenses comprise of current tax and deferred income tax charge or credit. Tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income or in Equity. In which case, the
tax is also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or Equity.

Current Tax

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period. Taxable profit differs fro
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amoun
and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering tl
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by tl
reporting date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the company’s
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in computation of taxable profit and quantified using the tax rates and
laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax base
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences to the extent that is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets relating to unabsorbed depreciation/business losses are recognised and carried forward to the extent of
available taxable temporary differences or where there is convincing other evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the company expects, at the end of reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and ljabilities.
Transaction or event which is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or in equity, is recorded
along with the tax as applicable.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

3.12 Foreign—currency transactions E.




3.13

3.15

Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency are recorded on initial recognition using the exchange
rate at the transaction date or at rates that closely approximate the rate at the date of the transaction. At each Balance Sheet
date, foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of initial transactions. Exchange
differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary items at each Balance Sheet date are
recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss in the period in which they arise.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash, cheque in hand, cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and equity shares to be issued on conversion of mandatorily
convertible instruments. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods
presented is adjusted for events such as bonus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and
reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding
change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby the net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from
regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash on hand, bank balance available on demand and bank
deposits with original maturity of three months or less.

Events after reporting date
Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting

period, the impact of such events is adjusted with financial statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of
material size or nature are only disclosed.

Recent pronouncement

Recent pronouncements: Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

(i) Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The company is evaluating the impact, if any, in its
financial statements.

(ii) Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a
change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition,
accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities
develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way _thatinvolves
measurement uncertainty. The company is evaluating the impact, if any, in its financial statements. i

(v
w*
(ifi) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes %}
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommission TOREoNS.
The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption)
so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
_diféerences. The company is evaluating the impact, if any, in its finaneial statements.
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Hindustan Waste Treatment Private Limited

Notes to Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
CIN : US0002ZMH2014PTC255728

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

10

11

-

Non Current Assets - Financial Assets - Trade Receivables

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good”

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Net trade receivables

“Refer Note 12 for ageing schedule of trade receivables.

Current Assets - Financial Assets - Loans
(Unsecured - considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Loans to others

Non Current Assets - Income tax assets (Net)
Advance Income Tax (net off provisions)®
“Net of provision (As on March 31, 2023- Rs. 72.47 Lakhs; March 31, 2022 Rs 494.21 lakhs)

Non Current Assets - Others
(Unsecured, unless otherwise stated)

Considered good
Capital advances
Prepaid expenses

Current Assets - Inventaries

Work In Progress

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

260.31 462,24
260.11 462.24
260.31 462.24

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

800.00

800.00

800.00

800.00

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

158.43

114.06

158.43

114.06

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

1,002.88 702.88
1.21 1.75
1,004.09 704.63

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

971.84

639.19

971.84

639.19

Note: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net relisable value. Net Relisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less estimated cost of completion and cost

necessary to make the sale.

The work in progress includes costs incurred towards new prajects undertaken by the Company. This includes work done portion of the project for enhancement of capacity of existing plant from 100

tons to 250 tons and Remidiation work at Sansoda site.

Current Assets - Finanical Assets - Trade Receivables
Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good"

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Net trade receivables

Note:

The Company has engaged into all governemnt infra projects. Therefore the Company is assured in realisation of all the pending dues.
The Company has all receivables due from either Central or State Government. Therefore, the Company is assured of recovering all the pending dues.

Refer note 39 about infarmation on credit risk and market risk of trade receivables.

-

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

1,380.79

4,903.94

T.IB079 4,903.9%
“Y.44 -Y.84
1,370.95 4,894.10




Ageing schedule of trade receivables as at March 31, 2023

Particulars

Unbilled

Not due

Outstanding far following pericds from due date of payment

Less
than 6
months

6
months -
1 year

More
than 3
years

i-2 2-3
years years

Tatal

(i} Undisputed Trade receivables - considered
good

1,023.12

90.67

451.42 75.90 i

164111

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which
have significant increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit
impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered
good

{v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit
impaired

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

- -9.84 -

-9.84

Total

1,023.12

90.67

451.42 66.06 -

1,631.27

Ageing schedule of trade receivables as at March 31, 2022

Particulars

Unbilled

Not due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less
than &
months

6
months -
1 year

More
than 3
years

1-2 2-3
years years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered
good

2,905.21

2,254.23

75.90 130.84 &

5,366.18

(i1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which
have significant increase in credit risk

(if) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit
impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered
good

(v) Disputed Trade Recefvables - which have
significant increase in credit risk

{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit
impaired

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

-9.84 - -

-9.84

Total

2,905.21

2,254.23

66.06 130.84 -

5,356.34

Current Assets - Financial Assets - Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
-On current account

-Deposit with original maturity of less than three months

Cash on hand

Current Assets - Financial Assets - Other bank balances

Deposits with banks

Note:

1) Fixed deposit of 517.38 Lakhs ( March 2022:Nil ) fs in lien with bank guarantee against Overdraft facility.

Current Assets - Financial Assets - Others
(Unsecured, unless otherwise stated)

Security Deposits
Interest on Loans given

Other current assets

Balance with government authorities
Advance to suppliers

Advance to employees

Prepaid expenses

-

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

13.06 11.59
15.25 67.89

- 0.32
28.31 79.79

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

654.58

130.88

654.58

130.88

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

9.67 12.43
64.00 -
73.67 12.43
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
411.56 364.45
90.36 -
1.00 30.58
30.27 16.63
533.19 411.66




Hindustan Waste Treatment Private Limited

Notes ta Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
CIN : U90002MH2014PTC255728

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

17  Equity Share Capital

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Authorized
4,00,00,000 (March 31, 2022: 4,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 4,000.00 4,000.00
4,000.00 4,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid u
3,90,40,000 (March 31, 2022: 3,90,40,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 3,904.00 3,904.00
3,904.00 3,904.00
(a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Number of A Number of i
shares shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,90,40,000 3,904.00 3,90,40,000 3,504.00
Add/Less: changes during the year - a = -
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,90,40,000 3,904.00 3,90,40,000 3,904.00
(b) Particulars of shares held by sharehalders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Campany
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
N of the sharshaldar Number of % of holding in Number of % of holding in
shares the class shares the class
SMC Infrastructure Private Limited 1,99,10,400 51.00% 1,99,10,400 51.00%
Navitas Waste Treatment Private Limited 1,91,29,600 49.00% 1,91,29,600 49.00%
3,90,40,000 100.00% 3,90,40,000 100.00%
(c) Shares held by promoters in the company
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Hatha & the Promoter Number of % of holding in Number of % of holding in
shares the class shares the class
SMC Infrastructure Private Limited 1,99,10,400 51.00% 1,99,10,400 51.00%
Navitas Waste Treatment Private Limited 1,91,29,600 49.00% 1,91,29,600 49.00%
3,90,40,000 100.00% 3,90, 40,000 100.00%
{d} Shares held by holding campany
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Naris cfthe Sharahialder Number of % of helding in Number of % of helding in
shares the class shares the class
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held by
SMC Infrastructure Private Limited 1,99,10,400 51.00% 1,%9,10,400 51.00%

(e) Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having at par value of Rs,10/- per share. Members of the Company holding equity share capital therein have right to vote, on
every resolution placed before the company and the right to receive dividend.

In the event of liquidation,the equity shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their
shareholding and are subject to the preferential rights of the preference shares.

18 Other equity

Movement in reserves and surplus

Retained earnings

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

2,166.78 1,830.46

Movement in OCI 5.75 3.83
Total Reserve and Surplus 2,172.52 1,834.29
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

A Retained earnings

Opening balance 1,830.46 1,271.31
Add: Profit for the year 336.32 559.15
Closing balance 2,166.78 1,830.46

B Movement in Other Comprehensive Income

Opening balance

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

.83 =
Add: Re-measurement loss on defined benefit liabilities (net of tax) 1.9 3.83
Closing balance 5.75 3.83
Total other equity 2,172.52 1,834.29

-




19 Non-Current Liabilities - Provisions March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Provision for employee benefits
Net defined benefit liability- Gratuity (refer nate 37) 4.51 4,60
4.51 4.60

20 Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Unsecured
Loan from Related Party* - 800.00
“Note: The loan taken from related party (a promater company), of Rs. 800 lakhs has interest rate of 12% p.a. and has no fixed repayment schedule.

Secured
Bank Overdraft” 189.43 -
189.43 800.00

"Note: Overdraft facility has been received from Bank of Baroda for a period of 12 manths, for the purpose of working capital at the interest rate of (FD interest rate +0.50%)
5.90% p.a., which is repayable on demand. The said overdraft is against primary security of lien of Fixed Deposits, whereby margin is 10% of fixed deposit amount.

21 Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,556.97 1,795.36

1,556.97 1,795.36

The Company does not have any dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {‘MSMED Act’}. The disclosures pursuant to the said
MSMED Act are as follows :

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end - % T
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end & =
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year - -
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day - ¥
during the year
Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the - -
appointed day during the year
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the - -
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year - =
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the - -
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act

Ageing schedule for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2023:

22

23

24

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Less than 12 2-3 More than
1 year years years 3 years Tojes
Undisputed
{i) Micro and small enterprises - . - - - - -
{ii) Others = - 735.91 816.12 n 1.23 1,556.97
Disputed
{i} Micro and small enterprises - - - . - -
(ii) Others - - - - - -
Total - - 735.91 816.12 3.7 1.23 1,556.97
Ageing schedule for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2022:
Ou ding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Less than 1-2 2-3 More than
1 year years years 3 years et
Undisputed
(i) Micro and small enterprises - - - -
(ii) Others 1,292.06 503.30 % 1,795.36
Disputed
(i) Micro and small enterprises - - - -
(ii) Others - a & & - .
Total = 1,292.06 503.30 = = 1,795.36

Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities - Others

Security Deposits

Current Liabilities - Others

Statutory dues Payable
TDS
TCS
ESIC
Provident fund payable
Other Payables
Provision for expenses

Current tax liabilities

Provision for tax”
“ Refer Note 9

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

2,242.50

2,242.50

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

77.07 3.9
0.31 0.14
5.93 5.9
7.60 6.37
0.04 0.79

131.43 58.92
222.38 96.05

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022




Hindustan Waste Treatment Private Limited

Notes to Financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
CIN : U90002MH2014PTC255728

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

Revenue from operations

Revenue from contracts with customer
Sale of services

Other Operating Income
Sale of Scrap
Supply of Electricity

Total Revenue from operations

Other inceme

Interest income under the effective interest methed en
- Term deposits
- Loans Given

Net gain on foreign currency transactions

Miscellaneous income

Total other income

Project Cost

Contract Cost

Changes In Inventories of Work in Progress

Opening Work in Progress
Less: Closing work in Progress

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity (refer naote 37)

Staff welfare expenses

Total employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Interest expense on Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost on
- Loans
- Bank overdraft
- Delayed payment of duties & taxes

Total finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortizatien on intangible assets
Total depreciation and amortization expense

Year Ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

4,305.37 10,290.74
4,305.37 10,290.74
125.60 159.66
285.80 86.92
411.39 246.58
4,716.77 10,537.32

Year Ended Year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

34.58 16.55
64.00 -
- 0.15
5.67 18.85
104.25 35.55
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

2,372.52 7,587.81
2,372,52 7,587.81
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

639.19 941.85
971.84 639.19
-332.65 302.67
Year Ended Year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

379.95 355.15
24.75 17.72
6.30 6.99
82.91 107.48
493.91 487.35
Year Ended Year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

6.67 53.55
4.63 -
0.60 0.08
11.90 53,63
Year Ended Year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

13.83 11.87
556.76 556.76
570.59 568.63




32

32.

33
(&)

(8)

Other expenses

Power and fuel
Repair and maintenance
-other
Travelling & conveyance
Transportation Charges
Bank Charges
Advertisement and marketing expenses
Liasoning Charges
Legal & professional fees
Insurance
Corporate social responsibility contribution (refer note 41)
Rates & taxes
Postage & Courier Charges
Payment to auditors (refer note 32.1)
Waste Disposal Charges
RXIL Discounting Charges
Watch & Ward Expenses
Service Charges
Printing & Stationery
Telephone and communication expenses
Net loss on foreign currency transactions
Loss on sale of property plant & equipment
Miscellaneous expenses
Total other expenses

Payment to auditors

As auditor:
Statutory audit
Total

Income Tax

Current tax expense

- Current tax charge

- Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

Income tax expense charged to OCI

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit liability{asset)
Income tax charged to OCI

Year Ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

1.94 1.74
3.68 28.31
15.95 2.78
62.88 19.1%
0.99 66.69
50.09 59.66
1.40 7.7
738.78 450.00
41.80 34.66
20.65 24.94
1.79 6.93
1.86 0.67
1.25 1.25
256.01 130.09
0.03 16.70
19.52 21.83
0.08 0.25
5.58 13.98
0.36 0.17
0.81
0.34 -
61.67 13.27
1,287.46 900.82
Year Ended Year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

1.25

1.25

1.25

1.25

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

70.00 112.80
10.97 -
80.97 112.80

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022




(C) Reconciliation of effective tax rate March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Profit before tax from continuing operations 417.29 671.95
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 69.65 112.16
Tax effect of:

- Short / excess provision of earlier years 10.97

- Others 0.34 0.64
Income tax expense 80.97 112.80

(D) Note on Minimum Alternate Tax Credit:
The Company has ongoing project which is due to complete within a couple of years and the revenue generated on a yearly basis is towards Operations & Maintenance,
Since there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will earn sufficient profits to utilise the the MAT credit, minimum alternate tax is not recorded.

{E) Note on Deferred Tax:

The Company has availed the benefit of deduction under Section 80-IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. It is estimated that temporary differences will be reversed within
the window of deduction under Section 80-1A. Consequently, the Company has not accounted for deferred tax.

P -



Hindustan Wasts Treatnent Privats Limited

Notes to Financial statement for the yaar ended March 31, 2023
CIN : US0002ZMH2014PTC255728

(Currency: Indian Rupees In lakhs)

34 Earnings per share (EPS)

Profit for the year for basic and diluted EPS (A}

Weighted average number of Equity shares for and diluted EPS ()
Earnings Per Share (Rs.) - Basic and diluted (Face value of Rs. 10 per share) (A/8)

Eamings Per Share (Rs.) - Diluted {Face value of Rs. 10 per share) (A/8)

3% Contingent liabilities and commitments

The Company does nat have any contingent labilty and capital commitments as on March 31, 2023 & March , 2072.

-
&

Relatad Party Disclosures

1 Names of d nature of
Holding Company:
SMC Infrastructure Private Limited

Fallow Subsidiaries;
Navitas Waste Treatment Private Limitad
SFC Environmental Technologles Private Limited

Key Managemaent Personnel:

Diractors:
W Saketchandrasingh Pratapsingh Dhandariya

Mr Subhash Parashram Gandhi (Resignation w.e.l 14.09.2022)
Mr.Shivaji Dada Desal

Mr. Ganesh Kandaswamy Thevar

Company Secratary:
. Modhuvanti Hrlshikesh Varkhedkar (Resigned w.e. 01/05/2022)
M. Bhavika Shah (Appointed w.e.f $1/10/2022)

1 Disclosure of transactions batween the Company and Related parties and the status of sutstanding balances a1 at year ending

a) Transactions with related parties:

Purchase of Services
SFC Environmental Technologies Private Limited
SMC Infrastructure Private Limited

Purchase of Materials
SFC Environmental Technologles Private Limited

Sales of Flxed Assets
SWC infrastructure Private Limited

Intarest on Loan borrowed
Havitas Waste Treatment Private Limited
SFC Environmental Technologles Private Limited

Loan Borrawed
Navitas Waste Treatment Private Limited
SFC Environmental Technologles Private Limited

Loan Repaid
Havitas Waste Treatment Private Limited
SFC Environmental Technologles Private Limited

b} Balances Quistanding

Loan Payable
Navitas Waste Treatment Private Limited

Trade Payables
SFC Environmental Technologles Private Limited
SMC Infrastructure Private Limited

3 Transactions with Key Managemant Personnel
Th with Key Personnel during March 31, 2021 & March 31, 2022,

37 Employes benefits
() Dafined Contribution Plans

Employer's Contribution ts fund

During the year, the Company's contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund recognised in the statement

- Employers # Fund and Fund

@) Defined benafit plans

Every employee Is entitled to the benefit equivalent to 15 days of total gross salary last drawn for each completed year of service.
permanent disablement In terms of the provisions of the payment of Gratuity Act.The scheme Is funded.

Particulars

1} Reconciliation In presant valus of cbilgation (PV0)
Defined benefit obligation:
Llability at the beginning of the year
Interest Cost
Current service cost
Benefits pald
Actuarlal loss on obligations

Acquisli <

Lhability at the end of the year

) Change in fair valus of plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at the beglnning of the year
Return on plan assets
Employer Cantributions
Benefits payments from plan assets
Actuarial gain on plan assets
Funded status

et Liability recognised in the balance sheet

1) Expenses recognised In the Profit & Loss:
Current service cost
Interest expense on DBO
Interest {income) on plan assets
et actuarial gain to be recognised
c i

Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

anded Year anded
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
3637 5915
3,90,40,000 3,90,40,000
088 143
0.86 141
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2027
780.24 198.24
T10.04 4mn
. 1,748.31
1224
523 24.81
1.45 .
135.00 1,705.00
550,00 .
95,00 503.00
350.00 .
800,00
1512 e
1,196.93 1,245.30

Profit and loss under the head Employee Benefit Expense.
March 31, 2023

19.64

March 31, 2022
—_—

13.43

Gratulty Is payable to all eligible employees of the company on retirement or separation o¢ death o

Gratuity (Funded)

As at

As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
—_— e

18.55 16.79
132 113
.99 5.6
(2.14) (2.00)
A7 [L53)]
2195 18.55
13,95
1.01 .
448 15.34
2.14) 2,00
0.14 0.64
17.44 13.95
4.5 4.60
599 5.8
132 113
1,01 .
- 3.23)
6.30 6.95




V) Expanses recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income:

Actuarial loss 191 -3.83
-1.91 383
Included in Other Comprahensive Income
Remeasurements due to:
Effect of Change In financial assumptions 0.71) (1.03)
Effect of Change In Demographic assumptions 0.00 0.00
Effect of experience adjustments (1.06) 12.20)
Return on plan Assets {(Greater)  less than discount rate 0.14) 10.61)
Total Remeasurements recognized in OCI (.91 .83
¥)  NetLiability recognised In the balance sheet
Fai value of plan assets at the end of the year 17.44 13.95
Ltability at the year end 121.95) (18.55)
Amount recognised in the balance sheet 4.51) .60
¥l Actuaral Assumptions
March 31, 2023 March 34, 2022
Discount rate 7.51% 71.74%
Expected salary increase rate £.00¢ 8.00%
Withdrawal Rate % 5%
Retirement Age S8yeans 58 years
wortality rate Indian assured Lives  Indian assured Lives
Maortality (2012-14) mortality (2012:14)
VIl Experience adjustments
Fresent value of defined benefit abligation 2185 18.55
Fair value of the plan assets 17.44 13.95
(Deficit} in the plan 451 460
Villy  Sensitivity Analysis
Reasonably passible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumations, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit abligation as shown below,
a5 AL As At
March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Increase in
Discount rate (1% movement) 19.56 16.50
Future salary grawth (1% mavement) 2474 0.97
Decrease in
Discount rate (1% movement) 2478 .01
Future salary growth (1% movement| 19.58 16.49
The sensitivity analysis above have: been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a resuit of reasonable changes fn key assumptions oceuring at the end of the reporting period.
1X)  Expoctad future cash flaws
The expected contributions for the defined benefit pian for the next financial years are mentioned below:
Expected future benefil payments A3 At A5 At
March 31, 2073 March 31, 2022
Year 1 o.88 0.68
Year2 0.87 0.74
Year 3 . n 05
Year 4 1.09 1.30
Year 5 1.26 0.9
Year 610 6.9 575
Above 10 years 10,32 9.26

The scheme is funded through a Trust and the funds are managed by a life insurance company
The company expects to contribute il in next financial year of 2023

The Average Expected future working life is 13,45 for March 31, 2023 { 13,57 years for March 31, 2022)

38 Fair values of financial anets and financial llabilities
The fair value of loans, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other current financial assets, trade payables, short-term borrawings and ather financial liabilities approximate the carrying amounts because of the short term nature of
these financial instruments.
The amortized cost using effective interest rate (EIR) of non-current financial assets consisting of security and term deposits are not significantly different from the carrying amount.
Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired include loans, cash and cash equivalents, security deposits, term deposits, and other financial assets.

Fair value hierarchy

The foliowing is the hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technigue:
* Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Liabilities,
= Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or [i ity, either directly
= Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based an cbservable market data {uncbservable inputs).

No financial assets/liabilities have been valued using level 1 fair value measurements.

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

. a3 prices| or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

As at March 31, 2023

Carrying ameunt Fair value
eulary Quoted Price in Significant Significant
FYTRL FYToC! Amartised cost Total active markets | observable Inputs | unebservable inputs Total
(Level 1) iLevel 2) iLevel 3)
Financial assets:
Trade recetvables - Noa-Current - - 260.31 260,31 - . 60.31 26031
Trade receivables - Current 1,370.95 1,370.95 - . 1,370.95 1,370.95
Cash and cash equivalents - Current . . 28311 8.3 - . 2831 2831
Other bank balances - Current . B 45458 654.58 - - 654.58 654.58
Loans - Current - - £00.00 800.00 . - £00.00 200,00
Other financial assets - Current - ¥ 7367 71.67 . - 73.67 7367
Financial Liabilities:
Borrowings - Current . . 189.43 186.43 - . 189.43 189.41
Trade payabies - Current - . 1,556.98 1,556.98 - . 1,556.98 1,556.98
Other financial liabilities - Currant - . - - - . .
As at March 31, 2022
Carrying amount Fair value
Pty Shgnificant Significant
FVTRL FyToC! Amortised cost Total observable inputs |  unobservable inputs Total
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets:
Trade receivables - Non-Currant 46224 462.24 . . 46224 462.24
Trade receivables - Current 4,894.10 . . 4,894.10 4,894.10
Cash and cash equivalents - Current - . 79.79 7.9 . - 79.79 719.79
Other bank balances - Current - . 130,88 130.88 - 130.88 130.88
Loans - Current - - £00.00 £00.00 - - 800.00 £00.00
Other financial assets - Current . - 12.43 12.43 - - 12.43 1243
Financial Habflitie:
Botrowings - Current 800.00 800.00 - - 800.00 800.00
Trade payables - Current . - 1,795.36 1.795.36 . . 1,795.36 1,795.36
Cther financial liabilities - Current . - 2,242.50 2,242.50 1,242.50 2,24i.50

39 Risk management Framewark

The Companys principal firancial liabilities comprises of of borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilitics. The main purpose of these financial labilitiet is to finance the Campany's operations. The Company’s principal financial
assels include loans, Lrade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances that derive directly from its operations. The Company 1y exposed preliminary to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s primary
focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets & seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financal performance,

(A} Market risk

Market rlsk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flws of a financial nstiument will fluctaate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises thiee types of risk: Forergn currency sk, interest rate risk and price risk. The
Company's expasure ta market nsk is on account of foreign currency nsk and intercst rate sk,

1) Interest rate risk

. .




Interest rate risk 15 the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primatily Lo the Company's borrowings with floating interest rates.The fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost, hence, they are not subject 1o interest rate risk since the carrying amount and future cash flows will not fluctuate
because of change in market interest rates. The exposure of the Company's borrowings ta interest rate changes at the end of reporting period are as follows:

The Company's borrowings {non-current and current) structure at the end of reporting penod are as follows:

s at
Particulars.

March 31, 2022
Variable Rate Borrowings =
Fixed Rate Borrowings
Total

800.00
800.00

Interest rata sensitivity
The follawing table demensirates the sensitivity 10 a reatanably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings, With all other variables held constan, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the
impact an floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/ decrease Effect on profit

in basis points before tax Btk oncyulty
For Year ended March 31, 2023
INR “100% 0.05 .05
INR. ~100% 0.05 -0.05
For Year ended March 31, 2022
INR +100% - -
IR -1008 . .

(1) Forsign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the sk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in forergn exchange rates relates
primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expanse is denominated in a different currency from the Company’s functional cutrency,

The Company's expasure to eurrency risic [carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities) at the end of the reparting period afe as follows :

Expature ta currency risk

Currency March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Payables EuRO 12,38 ¥
12.39 -
Met exposure 12.39

Foreign currency sensitivity
The fallowing table demonsirates the sensitivity to a reasonably passible change in foreign currency, with all other variables held constant relating to unhedged foreign currency exposure. The sensitivity analyais Includes only outstanding
forsign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10% change in the foreign currency rates. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is as follows:

Foreign currency sensitivity Currency Change in rate Effect on profit
befare tax

As at March 31, 2023 EURD +10% (1.24)
EURO -10% 1.4

As at March 31, 2022 EURD +10% -
EURC -10%

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debl according to the terms and obligati Credit risk of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of

i well as. ion of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and credit worthiness of the customer on continuous basis ta whom the cradit has been granted. The financial instruments that are subject
ta ion of credit risk principally of trade i and cash and bank equivalents.

Ta manage credit risk, the Company follows a policy of providing credit t: customers based on prevailing market cradit terms. The credit limit policy is established considering the current economic trend of the industry In which the
Company is operating. Also, the trade receivables are monilored on a periodic basis for assessing any significant risk of non:recaverability of dues and provision is created accordingly. Deposits receivable from customers which are municipal
parties are due at the end of the contract. These receivables are monitored on a periodic basis for assessing any significant risk af nan-recoverability of dues and provision is created accordingly.

The Company recognises lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivable using simplified approach by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on @ provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into
account historical credit lass experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in provision matrix.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade recaivables:

Trade Recaivable for March 31, 2023

Ageing Average loss rate “"’:‘:::1"‘ Allowance for expected credit foss “‘:::‘x"
Unbilicd 0.00% 5 -
ot due 0.00% - - -
Less than & months 0.00% 102512 : 102312
& months-1 Year c.00% %0.67 5 50.67
12 years 0.00% 514 . 5142
23 yean 0.00% 75,90 £ 66.06
More than 3 years 0.00% - . -
Toul et EXY) 183127
Trade Receivable for March 31, 2022
Ageing Average loss rate ﬁ":;:::""' Allowance for expected cradit Ioss "“‘m“w":"'
Unbified 0.00% -
Not due 0.00%] - - 5
Less than & months 0.00%| 2,905.21 : 7,505.21
& months-1 Year 0,00%] 2.254.21 - 2,054.23
1-2 years. 12.96% | 75.90 -9.84 &5.06
1-3 years 0.00% 130.84 2 130.84
wore than 3 years 0.00% [ - - -
Total | 5,366.18 9,84 5,156.34
Movement Table of altowance far impairmant
The movement in the allawance far impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was s fallows:
Warch 31, 2023 Warch 31, 2022
Balance as at April 01 9.54 .54
Amounts written off -
Brovision for the year ¢ .
Net measurement of allowance for expected credit loss . -
Balance as at March 31 5.84 9.84
I -



i

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk i the risk that the Company may not be able o meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incuming unacceptable Insses. The Company's objective v ta maintan aptimum levets of liquidity and to
ensure that funds arg avallate for uie & per requirement.

The liquadity risk: prinially arfses from abligations on atcount of financiat liatil
The tinance department of the Campany 1y respoesible far liguidity and funding as weil as settiement management, I sdditian, processes and policies related 1o swch riska aie overseen by sonice management.

Expasure to liquidity rish

Thiz tabile Bilow Summarizes the maturity profie of the Company™s financlal liabtities:

At at March 31, 2023

Other fenancial liakdities

A5 at March 31, 2022
Borrowings

Trade payables

Other financial liabilithes

Aatlo Analysis
Raties
Current Ratic

Dett to Equity Ratio

Debt Service Caverage Ratin

Rievurn an Exuity Ratic
Inwentory Turnowes Ratho

Trade receivable Tumaver Ratio
Trade payable Turnaver Ratia
Net cagital turncver ratio

Het profit ratio

FReturn on capital emplayed
Raturn on investment

Humerator

Current assets

Total Debt

Eamings available for debt yervice
et profit alter taxes

A

Current Liabilities

Sharehalders Equity

Dbt Service:
Awerage Shatehelder's Equity

A

Rievenue from coniracts =ith cuttenver Average Accounts Recelvable

Project Costy
Revenue from ooerations
et prafit after taxes

Earriing before Interest and taxes
HA

average Trade Payables
Warking Cagital
Rvenue from aperatians

Capital Employed
N

s iz, borrawings, trade payatiles and ather financial biatilities.

Within 1 year 145 3 years A1a 5 years Meare than § years Tatal
189.4% - . 189.43
759 B15.83 1 = 1,556.97
E.!l 419.8% 1.21 * 1,746 40
Within 1 year 1o ) years 1ta s yeant More than § years
400.00 ¥ B ¥
1150 soLa0 . .
i,341.50 3 #
4356 503.30
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 % Varlatian Remarky
Current Liabiities have
reduced more than
185 1.5 AB% current asseli
Tutal debs has
a0 o4 T wubstantially resuced
uring the previous.
year, foans were
DorTowed, Wheres,
during the current
e, fam were
141 4.7 1958 repaid
008 o0
Mt peafit after tax has
reduced comparatively
a4 o previous year
M WA A e
Reveniss has reduced
1.1 wmm -60% substantisfly
Project costs has
142 .55 78% reduced swbstantially
Revene hay reduced
84 B BTN subntantistly
Revenue hay reduced
007 o.0% £ sudbstartially
EBITDA han reduced
o007 an -38% substantially
Ha L Ha 1
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Corporate soclal responsibility

The Company has Corporate Social {CSR1 Commitlee as per Section 115 and schedule Vi of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act] read with the Companies {Carporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014,

The funds are utilised during the period on the activities which are specified in Schecule Vil of the Act. The utilisation is done by way of direct contribution towards PM National Relief Fund.
The details set below are for the amount spent by the Company
Gross Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 5 fs. 15,84 (in lakhs]

Amount spent during the year: Year erded 2023 Year ended 2022
In Cash/ Bank Yat to be paid in Total In Cash/ Bank____Yet to be paid in Cash/ Tatal
(1) Constructionfacquisition of any assets - E - . - -
1i1) O purpose other than (i) above 15.50 - 15.90 12.20 - .
Particula Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amaunt required to be spent by the company during the year 15.84 12.20
Amount of expenditure incurred 15,90 12.20
{Excess)/Shortfall at the end of the year 0.06 .
Total of previous years Excess/(shortfall . .
Reason for shortfall A NA
L Contribution to the Contribution to the.
Nature of CSR activities Frime Ministers Prime Minister's
National Relief Fund  Mational Relief Fund
Details of related party transactions N HA

Provision for CSR 5 5
Carried Forward For next year L ®

Capital management

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders te ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratics in order to suppart its business and masimise shareholder value, The Company manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments Lo it, in light of changes in econcmic conditions or its business requirements. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital ta
shareholders or issue new shares, No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31,2022

The amount managed as capital by the Company are summarised as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 34, 2022

Borrowings. 185.431 800.00
Less: cash and cash equivalent -28.31 79.79
Net Debt 16112 72021
Total Equity £,076.52 5,738.29
Capital and Net debt 6,237.64 6,458.50
Gearing Ratio 0.3 0.11

The Company is expesed Lo certain externally imposed capital requirements for its borrowings. However there are no debt covenants for long term borrawings as these are from related parties further, in case of the variable rate bomawing
facility availed by the Company, these are against fixed deposits placed with the Bank, there are na debt covenants for variable rate borrowings.

Revenue from cantracts with customers

The Company, is engaged in the business of integrated municipal solid waste management. The Company has entered inlo service i 1 with authorities for design,engineering, financing, construction,
supply, installation, commissioning, performance run and operation and maintenance for a period of ten (10lyears of 250 tons/per day (TPD] / 38500 Tons/annum (TPA] capacity Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) Processing Facility based on
Recycling & Sorting Line, Segregation, Bio-Methanation and In-Vessel Compasting at Calangute/Saligacin North District, Goa . The Goa Waste Management Corporation (GWHC) on 20 February 2020 granted the Company a concession for a
period of 10 years.

The Company will be paid for its services aver the periad of the servi at prices ined in the

The service concession arrangement has been accaunted under intangible assets model.

The facility was inaugurated on J0th May 2016 and has been operating sucessfully and meeting the defined performance standards as per concession agreement
For the above arrangement, The Company has a contractual right under the concession arangements to receive a fixed and determinable amount of payments during the concession period. Over and above the fixed and determinable
payments pany has a right to charge th authorities for the services rendered in excess of minimum guarantee.

Service concession arrangement states the rights and obligations for the Company as follows:

fal ta design, engineer, finance, construct. supply, install, commission, operate and maintain the plant;

{5 upon commissioning of the plant , to manage, operate and maintain the same;

e} receive Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) from GWMC (or a person autharised by GWNC] at the site;

{4 to inspect the MSW deliverad by GWMC and identify and segregate-any non conforming waste and take and manage as per the provisions of the agreement;
(e} to process MSW at the Plant;

{11 to undertake repair and maintenance of the plant for MSW processing and dispasal in accordance with the provisions of the agreement

{h! to transfer the plant to GWMC at the end of the term or on termination, in accordance with the provisions of the agreement; and

(i) To borraw or raise money o funding required for the due implementation of the project without mortgaging the site;

Gther additional regulatary information

The Company has not revalued any property, plant & equipment nor any intangible assets.

The Cormpany does nat have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

The Company does not hold any intangible assets under development and accordingly, no ageing nor completion schedule is provided.

The Campany has not granted loans to promoters, directors, key managerial persons and related parties as defined under Companies Act, 2013,

The Company has not advanced or loaned of invested funds ta any ather personis) or entityfies), including foreign entities fiaries) with the that the fary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest In other
persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by of on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any persan(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall: {a) directly or indirectly lend or
invest in ather persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) o (&) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company has utilised borrowings from banks or financial institutions for the purpase for which it was obtained.

The Company does nat have any borrowings from banks or financial institutions against security of current assets.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial | ion or g or any autharity.

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

The Company has not satisfied one charge which is yet ta be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. The charge is towards motor car loan with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai (RGC) for a value of Rs. 21,91 Lacs. The Company
is in the process of releasing the charge registered with the ROC and has received the HoC from bank dated August 20th, 2021. The Company had matled the form to the Bank dated September 14, 2021, The reason for delay in satisying the
charge registered with ROC is due to pendancy of digitally signed form to be received from bank.

The Company has nct traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 such as, search or survey o any
other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under ciause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement.

Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified to confirm presentation as per ind AS as required by Schedule Il of the Act.

ul Kavthekar Bha Shah
Company Secretary

Membership No: A58556

Flace: Mu.m Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbal Place: Mumbal
v 05 . 02 .2023
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